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FILED
LERK'S OFFICE
us. D‘Vs%m COURT EDN.Y.
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT , ma *
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK x AUG 272
______________________________ X ICE
SANTOS HERNANDEZ, FERDIS DELGADO, and LONG ISLAND OFF
MANUEL CAMPOS
On behalf of themselves and
others similarly situated
Plaintiffs,
COMPLAINT

-against-
PLAINTIFFS DEMAND
A TRIAL BY JURY

QUALITY BLACKTOP SERVICES, INC., C V - 1 8 4 8 6 2
STEVEN HELLERMAN DRIVEWAY CORP.,

JOHN DOE PRIME CONTRACTORS 1 THROUGH 10, and

JOHN DOE SURETY COMPANY 1 THROUGH 10

KARLINE HELLERMAN AND STEVEN HELLRMAN BIANCO, J.

in their individual capacity L SA
INDSAY, M.J.

Defendants.

Plaintiffs, SANTOS HERNANDEZ, FERDIS DELGAGO, AND MANUEL
CAMPOS by and through their attorney, DELVIS MELENDEZ,
complaining of the Defendants QUALITY BLACKTOP SERVICES, INC.,
KARLINE HELLERMAN, and STEVEN HELLERMAN collectively,

respectfully alleges as follows:

NATURE OF THE CLAIM

This action is brought to recover from the Defendants unpaid
overtime compensation, as well as an additional equal amount in

liquidated damages, costs and reasonable counsel fees under the
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provisions of Title 29 U.S.C.A. 201 et seq., and specifically

under the provisions of Title 29 U.S.C.A. 216(b).

JURISDICTION

This Court has jurisdiction over the claims presented
on the First Claim for Relief herein pursuant to the Act of June
25, 1938, ch 676, 52 Stat 1069, 29 U.S.C. Sections 201-219,
known as the Fair Labor Standards Act ("the FLSA" or "the Act"),
a law of the United States regulating interstate commerce, and
specifically under the provisions of Section 16 of said act, as
amended (29 U.S.C. § 216(b)).

1. Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court by Title 28
U.S.C.A. 1337 and by Title 29 U.S.C.A. 16(b). Defendant employer
is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of New York, having its principal place of business
located at 600 Johnson Ave. Suite C7 Bohemia, New York, 11716
within the jurisdiction of the court. At the times mentioned the
defendants employed the Plaintiffs and others similarly
situated.

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the New York

State Law claims presented in the third Claim for Relief
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 (a).

The Plaintiffs are residents of the County of Suffolk
within the jurisdiction of this honorable court.

PARTIES
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3. On information and belief, the defendant, KARLINE
HELLERMAN, is the Chief Executive Officer, owner or sole or
partial shareholder or agent of the Quality Blacktop Services,
Inc.

4, On information and belief, the defendant, STEVEN
HELLERMAN is the owner or sole or partial shareholder or agent
of the Quality Black Stop Services Inc.

5. On information and belief, the defendants, KARLINE
HELLERMAN AND STEVEN HELLERMAN, by virtue of their status as
owners, shareholders, directors, and officers of the corporate
defendant exercises <complete control over the corporate
defendant.

6. On information and belief, Steve Hellerman Driveways
Corp., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of New York, having 1its principal place of business
located at 600 Johnson Ave. Suite C7 Bohemia, New York, 11716
within the jurisdiction of the court. At the times mentioned the
defendants used Plaintiffs in a fungible manner inter changing
them between work at Steve Hellerman Driveways Corps, and
Quality Black Top Services.

7. STEVEN HELLERMAN is the owner or sole or partial

shareholder or agent of the Steve Hellerman Driveways Corp.
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7. On information and Dbelief, the defendant QUALITY
BLACTOP SRVICES, INC., is engaged in a for profit business which
has gross revenue in excess of $500,000 per annum and is engaged
in interstate commerce. Specifically, Defendant, QUALITY
BLACKTOP SERVICES, INC., is in the business of CONSTRUCTION AND
PAVING SERVICES and is an “employer” subject to the jurisdiction
of the FLSA.

8. On information and belief, the defendant STEVER
HELLERMANS DRIVWAYS CORPS, is engaged in a for profit business
which has gross revenue in excess of $500,000 per annum and 1is
engaged in interstate commerce.

9. QUALITY BLACKTOP SERVICES, INC. and Steven Hellerman
Drive Ways Corp., are in the construction and paving business
and are “employers” subject to the jurisdiction of the FLSA.

10. QUALITY BLACK TOP SERVICES INC., and STEVER HELLERMAN
DRIVEWAYS CORP., due to the fungible nature of their enterprise
operate as a single entity.

11. Plaintiff, Santos Hernandez, has been employed by
defendants for the entire state and federal statutory period. He
was a full time laborer/machine operator. His employment with
Quality Blacktop Services, Inc., ended on July 16, 2018.

12. Plaintiff, Ferdis Delgado, has worked for the

Defendants for the entire state and federal statutory period.
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He was a full time laborer/machine operator. He worked for the
company until May 2018.

13. Plaintiff, Manuel Campos, began working for the
defendants on or about May 2016. He was a full time laborer. He
worked for the company until July 15, 2018.

14, Upon information and belief, John Doe Surety Company,
(hereinafter referred to “Bonding Company”) 1is a corporation
incorporated or otherwise authorized to do business under the
laws of the State of New York, is engaged in the surety bonding
business, and issued payment bonds to Defendant Quality Blacktop
Services, Inc., in connection with publicly financed projects.
15. Upon information and belief, John Doe prime
contractor, is a corporation incorporated or otherwise
authorized to do business under the laws of the State of New
York, who may have been the prime contractor on the prevailing
wage projects.

FACTS

16. At all times pertinent to this Complaint, the
Plaintiffs Santos Hernandez, Ferdis Delgado, and Manuel Campos
worked as laborers/machine operators.

17. Plaintiffs routinely worked from 6:30 a.m. to 5:00 or
later depending on the need. Plaintiffs usually worked six days

per week.
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18. Plaintiffs routinely worked in excess of 40 hours per
week but Defendants failed to comply with Title 29 U.S.C.A. 201-
219, in that the Plaintiffs worked for the Defendants in excess
of the maximum hours provided by the Act, but no provision was
made by the Defendants to pay the Plaintiffs the overtime
required by the Act.

19. Plaintiff, Santos Hernandez during the statutory
period earned from $16.00 to $22.00 per hour. He was paid part
in cash and part in check. The overtime hours for most of his
employment was paid in cash at the straight time rate.

20. In or about 2017, defendants began paying Santos
Hernandez some overtime hours on the books. However, defendants
falsely reported that Plaintiff earned $18.00 an hour to lower
the overtime rate he was owed.

21. Defendants only reported some of Santos Hernandez’s
overtime hours worked on payroll. The remaining overtime hours
were paid at $22.00 per hours, which was his regular rate of
pay.

22. Plaintiff, Ferdis Delgado was paid was paid $20.00 per
hour. The overtime hours were paid in cash at the straight time
rate off the books.

23. In or about 2017, Defendants started reporting some of
the overtime hours on payroll. However, they lowered Ferdis

Delgado’s hourly rate to $12.50 to avoid paying the correct
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overtime and only reported a portion of the overtime hours. The
remaining overtime hours were paid in cash at $20.00 per hour,
which was his regular rate of pay.

24. Plaintiff, Manuel Campos was paid was paid $15.00 per
hour. The overtime hours were paid in cash at the straight time
rate off the books.

25. Like Santos Hernandez and Fredis Delgado Defendants
only reported a portion of the overtime hours worked. The
remaining overtime hours were paid in cash at $15.00 per hour,
which was his regular rate of pay.

26. The Plaintiffs performed labor for the defendants,

or one or more of the defendants, for certain projects located
in New York State which were public works improvements and/or
tree removal projects within the meaning of New York Labor Law
Articles 8, 8-A or 9 such projects including, but not limited
to, construction and paving parking lots for various projects in
Nassau, Suffolk, in the State of New York.

27. That the <corporate defendants had one or more
contracts with public entities which contracts required the
payment of prevailing wages, as per New York Labor Law Articles
8, 8-A, or 9, to workers, and corporate defendant acted as a
contractor or sub-contractor on one or more of such contracts.
28. Throughout their employment plaintiffs worked on

prevailing wage projects. Plaintiffs were not paid the
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prevailing wage rate, misclassified and/or paid less then what
the State’s wage schedules required.

29. That the corporate defendants had a duty to pay the
employees working on those public works projects according to
the terms delineated in the contract and failed to pay its
employees according to the specified terms.

30. That as to the tort causes of action pled herein it is
alleged that such causes of action are exempt from the
provisions of CPLR Article 16 pursuant to CPLR § 1602 and that
all of the defendants are jointly and severally liable for the
Plaintiffs damages.

31. The various actions taken by the individual defendants
to effectuate their overtime and prevailing wage payment evasion
scheme include the following:

a) Intentionally failing to maintain accurate
records of wage payments made to workers, such as the
Plaintiffs, that showed the actual overtime hours the Plaintiffs
worked;

b) Intentionally failing to pay workers, such as the
Plaintiffs, wages and overtime wages for work in excess of 40
hours per week;

c) Failing to and/or falsifying records and documents

indicating that workers, such as the Plaintiffs, were being paid
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the appropriate prevailing rate wages as required by New York
State Law;

d) Setting up and/or maintaining the corporate
defendants in an attempt to shield the individual defendants
from any personal liability for their illegal actions, such as a
corporate defendant being merely a front or agent which the
individual defendants used in the furtherance of their illegal
scheme.

32. The individual defendants took it wupon themselves to
deny the Plaintiffs the payment of the Plaintiffs’ full, legal
and proper wages such actions being undertaken by the individual
defendant intentionally, with full knowledge of their
illegality, and for the specific purpose of personally enriching
the individual defendants at the expense of the Plaintiffs.

33. The individual defendants, by intentionally acting to
violate the laws, rules, regulations, statutes and wage orders
alleged  herein, and/or by virtue of their ©position as
controlling owners and/or managers of the corporate defendant,
and/or by acting as the Plaintiffs’ employer within the meaning
of the FLSA, assumed personal liability for the claims of the
Plaintiffs herein.

34. The individual defendants, as part of an overtime and
prevailing wage payment evasion scheme, have vitiated the

independent legal existence of the corporate defendants and as a
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result have made themselves, along with the corporate
defendants, jointly and severally, liable for the claims made
herein.

35. The individual defendants operated, acted and/or
otherwise took action through their control of the corporate
defendant to consciously deprive the plaintiffs of overtime
and/or other wages due them under common law and New York State
Law. The individual defendants undertook such actions on their
own initiative and for their own benefit and did not take such
actions simply at the behest of or as an agent of the corporate
defendant and that such actions by the individual defendants
were illegal and “ultra vires” to the corporate defendant thus
destroying any separate and independent legal existence of the
corporate defendant for the purposes of the claims made by
Plaintiffs herein and making the individual defendant(s)
personally liable for such claims.

36. This action is brought to recover from the Defendants
unpaid overtime compensation, as well as an additional equal
amount in liquidated damages, costs and reasonable counsel fees
under the provisions of Title 29 U.S.C.A. 201 et seq., and
specifically under the provisions of Title 29 U.S.C.A.
216(b),and the Labor Law of the State of New York, including but
not limited to, Articles 6, 8, 9 and 19, New York Labor Law §§

191, 193, 198, 918-b, 220-g, 223, 239-a, 652, 662 and 663, the
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Wage Orders issued under the NYMWA at 12 N.Y.C.R.R. §§ 137-142,
and the common law.

37. Defendants, conduct was willful as it manifested a
blatant disregard for the law. Moreover, the pattern and
practice of blatantly violating the Fair Labor Standards Act was
not a single incident violation. The defendant company engaged
in a pattern and practice of wage violations for an extended
period of time, and this practice effected many similarly
situated workers.

38. That the defendants have willfully violated the
statutes and regulations which are alleged in this Complaint and
which form the basis of Plaintiffs claims for relief.

309. The Plaintiffs are entitled to compensation at the

rate of one and one half times the regular rate of pay at which
they were employed, for hours worked in excess of 40. Along with
compensation for work undertaken on prevailing wage projects at
the correct prevailing wage rate. All of which the Defendants
failed and refused to pay to the Plaintiffs.

40. The undersigned SANTOS HERNANDEZ, FERDIS DELGADO, AND
MANUEL CAMPOS employees of Defendants, QUALITY BLACK TOP
SERVICES INC., and STEVE HELLERMAN DRIVEWAYS CORP. et al.

consent to becoming party Plaintiffs in the above-

captioned matter.
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AS AND FOR A FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF PURSUANT TO
THE FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT ON BEHALF OF
SANTOS HERNANDEZ, FERDIS DELGADO, MANUEL CAMPOS, AND SUCH
OTHER PERSONS WHO CONSENT IN
WRITING TO JOIN THIS ACTION PURSUANT TO 29 U.S.C. § 216(B)

41. The Plaintiffs brings this First Claim for Relief
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) on behalf of themselves and all
other similarly situated persons who consent in writing to join
this action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), and upon information
and belief there are numerous such similarly situated persons.
42, Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the FLSA, 29
U.S.C. § 206 and § 207, the Plaintiffs was entitled to a minimum
an overtime hourly wage of time and one-half their regular
hourly wage for all hours worked in excess of forty hours per
week, Plaintiffs worked more than 40 hours per week for the
defendants, and defendants willfully failed to make said
overtime wage payments.

42. The Plaintiffs on behalf of themselves and all other
similarly situated persons who consent in writing to join this
action, seeks, on this First Claim for Relief, a judgment for
unpaid overtime wages, such sums to be determined based upon an
accounting of the hours worked by, and wages actually paid to,
the Plaintiffs and such other similarly situated persons who
consent in writing to join this action, and the Plaintiffs also

seeks an award of liquidated damages equal to 100% of such
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amount, attorney’s fees, interest and costs as provided for by

the FLSA.
AS AND FOR A SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFFS
AS A THIRD PARTY CONTRACT BENEFICIARY
43, Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every

allegation previously set forth herein.

44, That the defendants, or one or more of the Defendants,
entered into contracts with one or more third parties to perform
the tree removal/pruning services which the Plaintiffs provided
labor for.

45. That when the defendants or one or more of the
defendants, entered into the aforesaid contracts to perform the
work which the Plaintiffs provided 1labor for such defendants
agreed as part of such contracts and/or as a matter of law were
required to by such contracts to pay the Plaintiffs a
“prevailing wage” which was specified in such contracts or was
incorporated by reference in such contracts.

46. That the Plaintiffs were a third party beneficiary of
the aforesaid contracts.

47. That the defendants, or one or more of the defendants,
breached the aforesaid contracts in that they failed to pay the
Plaintiffs the prevailing wages required under such contracts,

and that the Plaintiffs did not receive the monies he was due as
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a third party beneficiary of the aforesaid contracts which
provided for the payment of a prevailing wage to the Plaintiffs.
48. The Plaintiffs seek, on this Second Claim for Relief,
a judgment for damages based upon an accounting of the amount of
money the Plaintiffs were paid and the amount of money they
should have been paid as a third party beneficiaries of such
contracts, together with an award of interest, costs,
disbursements, attorney’s fees, 1liquidated damages, and such
other relief as the Court deems proper.

AS AND FOR A THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFFS AS WORKERS

ENTITLED TO THE FULL PAYMENT OF HIS

WAGES AND PAYMENT OF OVERTIME WAGES AS PER THE
NEW YORK STATE LABOR LAW

49, Plaintiffs repeat and —reallege each and every
allegation previously set forth herein.
50. Pursuant to the applicable provisions of New York
State Law, Plaintiffs were entitled to an overtime hourly wage
of time and one-half for all hours worked in excess of forty
hours per week, plaintiffs worked more than 40 hours per week
for the defendants, and defendants failed to make said overtime
payments.
51. At the times pertinent to this complaint, defendants
failed to comply with New York State Law, including the

protections set forth in Articles 6 and 19 of the Labor Law of

the State of New York and the wage orders contained at 12 NYCRR
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137 to 142 and Section 198 of said law, in that Plaintiffs
worked for defendants in excess of the number of hours for which
plaintiffs should receive their regular hourly wages under New
York State Law and defendants failed to pay Plaintiffs at the
rate of time and one-half for the hours worked in excess of said
number of hours set forth in New York State Law and/or
defendants failed to pay the Plaintiffs the overtime wage
provided for under said law including the provisions under the
aforesaid regulations which require payment of an additional one
hour’s pay for each day worked where the shift of hours is in
excess of ten hours per day. Defendants have failed to otherwise
pay Plaintiffs their full agreed upon and legal wages and wage
supplements.

52. As a result of the foregoing, the Plaintiffs seeks, on
this Third Claim for Relief, from the defendants various sums of
money in overtime wages and/or other wages that defendants
failed to pay Plaintiffs in violation of the Labor Law of the
State of New York and the Wage Orders issued there under,
together with an award of costs, reasonable attorney’s fees from
the defendants, interest, and liquidated damages equal to 100%
of the amount of such unpaid wages and wage supplements.

AS AND FOR A FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFFS
BASED UPON NEGLIGENCE
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53. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every
allegation previously set forth herein.

54. That the individual defendant(s) or one or some of
them, had a duty to the Plaintiffs, in that such defendant (s)
were handling the cash or paychecks which constituted the
payments for the wages owed to the Plaintiffs by their
employer (s) and/or were otherwise involved in running or
managing the employer(s) of Plaintiffs and as such had a duty to
use reasonable care in the handling of such cash and paychecks
and/or use reasonable care in respect to their running and
managing of the Plaintiffs employers(s) and in having such
employer(s) of the Plaintiffs pay the Plaintiffs their full,
proper, and legally required wages.

55. That the individual defendant(s) or one or some of
them, breached their duty of reasonable care towards the
Plaintiffs by negligently handling the wage payments owed to the
Plaintiffs and/or in otherwise being negligent in their managing
and running of the Plaintiffs employer(s), such lack of
reasonable care by such defendant(s) being the direct and
proximate cause of the Plaintiffs’ damages arising from the
failure of the Plaintiffs to receive his full, legal, and proper
wages from the Plaintiffs employer(s).

56. That the individual defendant(s), or one or some of

them, were negligent and such negligence damaged the Plaintiffs
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and the Plaintiffs, seeks, on this Fourth Claim for Relief, from
such individual defendant(s) various sums of money in overtime
wages and/or other wages and wage supplements that should have
been paid to the Plaintiffs but was not paid to Plaintiffs as a
result of the negligence of such individual defendant(s).

damages, and attorney’s fees as awardable by statute.

AS AND FOR A FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFFS
AGAINST JOHN DOE BONDING ENTITIES BASED UPON
NEW YORK STATE LABOR LAW SECTION 220-G

57. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every
allegation previously set forth herein.
58. The defendant Western Surety Company (the “bonding
entity”), has agreed to act as the surety for the other
defendants by posting bond(s) pursuant New York State Finance
Law § 137 to assure the other defendants, or some of the other
defendants, compliance with New York Labor Law Article 8, 8-A
and/or 9 and/or otherwise have become legally liable to the
Plaintiffs for their claims against the other defendants.
59. That the plaintiffs, pursuant to New York State Labor
Law § 220-g, seeks from the bonding entity the payment of the

wages, wage supplements, liquidated damages, attorney’s fees and

the other relief that the Plaintiffs are entitled to from his
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employers pursuant to New York Labor Law Article 8, 8-A and/or 9

and/or any other theory of recovery.

AS FOR THE SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF ON BEHALF OF THE PLAINTIFFS
FEDERAL RULE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE RULE 23 CLASS ACTION
ALLEGATIONS
60. Plaintiffs also bring New York Labor Law claims on
behalf of themselves and a class of persons under Rule 23 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure consisting of all persons who
work or have worked for defendants in the State of New York at
any time from the six (6) years prior to the filing of this
complaint to the entry of the judgment in the case (the "Rule 23

Class").

1. The persons in the Rule 23 Class identified above are
so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.

2. The Rule 23 Class Members are readily ascertainable.
For purposes of notice and other purposes related to this
action, their names and addresses are readily available from
Defendant.

3. Defendants have acted or have refused to act on
grounds generally applicable to the Rule 23 Class, thereby
making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding
declaratory relief with respect to the Rule 23 Class as a whole.

4. There are questions of law and fact common to the
Rule 23 Class that predominate over any questions solely

affecting individual members of the Rule 23 Class, including
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but not limited to:

a) Whether the defendants unlawfully failed to pay
proper compensation in violation of and within the meaning of the
New York Labor Law Article 6, 190 et seq. and the supporting
New York State Department of Labor Regulations, 12 N.Y.C.R.R.
Part 142;

b) Whether the defendants unlawfully failed to pay
proper compensation in violation of and within the meaning of the
New York Labor Law Article 6, 193 et seq. and the supporting
New York State Department of Labor Regulations, 12 N.Y.C.R.R.
Part 146-1.7,146-1.8;

c) Whether the New York Class Representatives and
Rule 23 Class are non-- exempt from entitlement to premium
compensation for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per
week;

d) Whether defendants have failed to keep true and
accurate time records for all hours worked by Plaintiffs and the
Rule 23 Class;

e) What proof of hours worked is sufficient when
an employer fails in its duty to maintain true and accurate
time records;

f) What were the ©policies, practices, programs,
procedures, protocols and plans of Defendant regarding payment
of overtime wages;

g) Whether defendants failed and/or refused to pay
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Plaintiffs and the Rule 23 Class overtime pay for hours worked
in excess of 40 hours per work week within the meaning of New
York Labor Law Article 19, §650 et seq., and the supporting
New York State Department of Labor Regulations, 12
N.Y.C.R.R. Part 142;

h) Whether defendants made improper deduction
from Plaintiffs and the Rule 23 Class from wages for the
cost of laundering uniforms within the meaning of New York
Labor Law Article 6, §1930 et seq., and the supporting New
York State Department of Labor Regulations, 12 N.Y.C.R.R.
Part 146- 1.7, 146-1.8.

i) The nature and extent of Rule 23 Class-wide
injury and the appropriate measure of damages for the class;

j) Whether defendants' general practice of
failing and/or refusing to pay Plaintiffs and the Rule 23
Class overtime pay for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per
work week was done willfully or with reckless disregard of the
federal and state wage and hour laws.

61. The claims of the Plaintiffs are typical of the
claims of the Rule 23 Class they seek to represent and the
Rule 23 Class work or have worked for defendants in non-
exempt positions and have not been paid overtime wages for the
hours that they have worked in excess of 40 hours per week.

Defendants have acted and have refused to act on grounds
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generally applicable to the Rule 23 Class, thereby making
declaratory relief with respect to the Rule 23 Class
appropriate.

62. Plaintiffs' claims are typical of those claims which
could be alleged by any member of the Class, and the relief
sought is typical of the relief which would be sought by each
member of the Class in separate actions. All the Class members
were subject to the same corporate practices of Defendants, as
alleged herein, of failing to pay overtime compensation for hours
worked in excess of forty (40) hours each week.

63. Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interests of the Rule 23 Class.

64. Plaintiffs have retained counsel competent and
experienced in complex class actions and in labor and employment
litigation.

65. A class action 1is superior to other available
methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
litigation, particularly in the context of a wage and hour
litigation like the present action, where individual Plaintiffs
may lack the financial resources to vigorously prosecute a
lawsuit in federal court against a corporate defendant. Class
action treatment will ©permit a large number of similarly
situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a single

forum simultaneously, efficiently, and without the unnecessary
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duplication of efforts and expense that numerous individual
actions engender. The adjudication of individual 1litigation
claims would result in a great expenditure of Court and public
resources; however, treating the claims as a class action would
result in a significant savings of these costs. The members of
the Rule 23 Class have been damaged and are entitled to recovery
as a result of defendants'’ common and uniform policies,
practices and procedures. Although the relative damages suffered
by individual Rule 23 Class Members are not de minimis, such
damages are small compared to the expense and burden of
individual prosecution of this litigation. In addition, class
treatment is superior because it will obviate the need for unduly
duplicative litigation that might result in inconsistent
judgments about defendants' practices.

66. Current employees are often afraid to assert their
rights out of fear of direct or indirect retaliation. Former
employees are fearful of bringing claims because doing so can
harm their employment, future employment, and future efforts to
secure employment. Class actions provide class members who are
not named in the complaint a degree of anonymity which allows for
the vindication of their rights while eliminating or reducing
those risks.

SEVETH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

WAGE NOTICE VIOATIONS PURUSANT TO NYLL 195(1)
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67. Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and other
similarly situated employees with wage notice at the time of
hiring.

68. NYLL 195(1) states pertinent part that an employer
is to provide his or her employees, at the time of hiring, a
notice containing the following information: the rate or rates of
pay and basis thereof, whether paid by the hour, shift, day,
week, salary, piece, commission, or other; allowances, if any,
claimed as part of the minimum wage, including tip, meal, or
lodging allowances.

69 . As a result of Defendants violation of the wage notice
provisions, Plaintiff and similarly situated employees are
entitled to the statutory penalty, plus attorney’s fees.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

WAGE STATEMENT VIOATIONS PURUSANT TO NYLL 195 (3)

70. . Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and other
similarly situated employees with accurate wage statements upon
each earning cycle.

71. NYLL 195(3) states in pertinent part that an
employer is to provide his or her employees with a statement with
every payment of wages, listing the following: the dates of work
covered by that payment of wages; name of employee; name of
employer; address and phone number of employer; rate or rates of

pay and basis thereof, whether paid by the hour, shift, day,
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week, salary, piece, commission, or other; gross wages;
deductions; allowances, if any, claimed as part of the minimum
wage; and net wages.

72. Defendants violated the provision of the NYLL
195(3) by paying the Plaintiffs and other similarly situated
employees’ exclusively in cash and off the books. At no time
tendering to them wage statements.

73. As a result of defendants’ violation of the wage
statement provisions, Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees
are entitled to the statutory penalty plus attorney’s fees.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of all
other similarly situated persons, pray for the following relief:

(i) Unpaid wages and an additional and equal amount
as liquidated damages pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §201 et seqg. and the
supporting United States Department of Labor regulations;

(ii) Unpaid wages and additional and equal amounts as
liquidated damages for violations of Article 19 sec. 650.

(iid) Unpaid wages and additional and equal amounts
as liquidated damages for violations of Article 6 sec. 193 and
supporting New York State Department of Labor Regulations 12
N.Y.C. R.R part 146-1.7 146-1.8

(iv) Certification of this case as a collective action

under 29 U.S.C. §216(b) and a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of
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the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

(v) Designation of Plaintiffs as representative of the
Rule 23 Class, and counsel of record as Class Counsel;

(vi) Damages in an amount to be determined at
trial for Defendant's violation of New York State Labor Law
§196-d;

(vii) Unpaid wages due to Plaintiffs under a third
party beneficiary cause of action for failure to pay prevailing
wage rates on public works projects.

(viii) Damages 1in the amount of §5000. For each
Plaintiff for wage notice violations pursuant to NYLL 195(1).

(ix) Damages in the amount of $5000. For each

Plaintiff for wage statements violations pursuant to NYLL 195 (3).

(x) Certification of this case as a collective action
pursuant to 216(b) of the FLSA.

(xi) All attorneys' fees and costs incurred in
prosecuting these claims; and

(xii) Such other relief as this Court deems just
and proper.

Dated: Brentwood, New York
August 24, 2018
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submitted,

Delvis Meléndez, Esq.
Attorney for Plaintiffs
90 Bradley Street
Brentwood, NY 11717
(631) 434-1443
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CISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
FASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

X
SANTOS HERNANDEZ, FREDLS DELGADC AND MANUEL CAMPOS
On behalf of himself and cothers similarly situated

[

Dy 1T
PN PN R )

Loy,

by

CONSENT TO JOINDER
~againsi-
QUALTTY BLACKTCP SERVICES Inc.,
STEVE HELLERMAN DRIVEWAY CORP.
KARLINE HELLERMAN and
STEVEN HELLERMAN
In their individual capacities

Defendants.

By signing below T, Fredis Delgsds consent to become
party plaintiff in this lawsult and be bound by any decision
herein,

Dated: August 7, 2018

gero}»s m/@ /O

edis Del aai;

C/0 Law Offices of Delvis Melendez
90 Bradliey St.

Brentwood, N.Y. 11717

63-434-1443



Case 2:18-cv-04862-JFB-ARL Document 1 Filed 08/27/18 Page 28 of 29 PagelD #: 28

DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE CF NEW YORK
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK
- X
SANTOS HERNANDEZ, FRED1S DELGADC AND MANUEL CAMPOS
On behalf of himsel? and others similtariy situated

Plaintiff,
CONSENT TO JOINDER

-against -
QUALITY BLACKTOP SERVICES Inc.,
STEVE HELLERMAN DRIVEWAY CORP.
KARLINE HELLERMAN and

STEVEN HELLERMAN
in their individual capacities

By signing below I, Santos Hernandez consent to becomc
a party plaintiff in this lawsuit and be bound by any decision
herein,
Dated: August 7, 2018

AA) 25 [T ) oz g 083

Santos Hernandey

C/0 Law Offices of Delvis Melendez
90 Bradley St.
Brentwocod, N,Y. 11717

53~434~-14432
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DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

- X

SANTOS HERNANDEZ, FREDIS DELGADO AND MANUEL CAMP

On behalf of himself and others similarly 51taated

Plaintiff,
CONSENT TO JOINDER

-against-

QUALITY BLACKTOP SERVICES Inc.,
STEVE HE RMAN DRIVEWAY CORP.
KARLINE HELLERMAN and

STEVEN HELLERMAN

in their individual capacities

Defendants,

By signing below I, Manuel Campos consent to beccome a
party plaintiff in this lawsuit and be bound by any decision
herein,

Dated: August 7, 2018 ) o ST

........... Mdnuc1lraﬂp09

C/0 Law Offices of Delvis Melande:
30 Bradley St.

Brentwood, N.Y. 11717

£3-434-144%
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY

Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions secking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a

certification to the contrary is filed.

Case is Eligible for Arbitraion [ _|

I , counsel for , do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is ineligible for
compulsory arbitration for the following rcason(s):

monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,
D the complaint seeks injunctive relief,
D the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section Vil on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule 50.3.1 in Section Vil on the front of this form. Rule 50.3.1 (a) provides that "A civil case is "related”
to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a
substantial saving of judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule 50.3.1 (b) provides that * A civil case shall not be
deemed “related’ to another civil case merely because the civil case: (A) involves identical legal i or (B) involves the same parties.” Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that
“Presumptively, and subject to the power of a judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are stiil
pending before the court.”

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)(2)

1.) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk

County? [ Yes O No

2) If you answered “no” ahove:
a) Did the events or onfissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
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b) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? 4 VYes No

c) If this is a Fair Debt Collection Practice Act case, specify the County in which the offending communication was
received: .

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or
Suffolk County, or, in @ interpleader etr:l.ion, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or
Suffolk County? es No

(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

| am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.

m Yes D No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?

D Yes (If yes, please explain IZI No

of(all jifprmation provided above.
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